ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 5, 2014
1:19 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Eric Feige, Co-Chair
Representati ve Dan Saddl er, Co-Chair
Representati ve Peggy W1l son, Vice Chair
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Crai g Johnson
Representative Kurt O son
Representative Scott Kawasaki
Representative Geran Tarr

MEMBERS ABSENT
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 207

"An Act establishing the Board of Agriculture, Conservation, and
Devel opnent; transferring the powers and duties of the Natura
Resource Conservation and Devel opnent Board to the Board of
Agricul ture, Conservation, and Devel opnent; transferring to the
Department of Commerce, Community, and Econom c Devel opnent the
authority to approve loans from the agricultural revolving |oan
f und; termnating the Natural Resource Conservation and
Devel opnent Board; and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 207

SHORT TITLE: AGRI CULTURE; AGRI CULTURAL LOANS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) FEI GE

04/ 12/ 13 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
04/ 12/ 13 (H) RES, FIN
02/ 05/ 14 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- February 5, 2014



M CHAEL PASCHALL, Staff

Representative Eric Feige

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 207 on behalf of the sponsor,
Represent ati ve Fei ge.

EDMUND FOGELS, Deputy Conmi ssioner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Natural Resources (DNR)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions regardi ng HB 207.

KRI STI N CURTI S

Legi sl ative Auditor

D vision of Legislative Audit

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information on the audit of the
Agricul tural Revol ving Loan Fund.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:19: 39 PM

COCHAIR DAN SADDLER <called the House Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:19 p.m Represent ati ves
Saddl er, Johnson, Hawker, O son, Feige, Kawasaki, and P. WI son
were present at the call to order. Representative Tarr arrived

as the nmeeting was in progress.

HB 207- AGRI CULTURE;, AGRI CULTURAL LQOANS

1: 20: 02 PM

CO CHAI R SADDLER announced that the only order of business is
HOUSE BILL NO 207, "An Act establishing the Board of
Agriculture, Conservation, and Developnent; transferring the
powers and duties of the Natural Resource Conservation and
Devel opnent Board to the Board of Agriculture, Conservation, and
Devel opnent ; transferring to the Departnent of Comer ce,
Community, and Econom c Devel opnent the authority to approve
| oans fromthe agricultural revolving |oan fund; termnating the
Nat ur al Resource Conservation and Devel opnent Boar d; and
providing for an effective date."

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- February 5, 2014



1:20: 39 PM

CO CHAI R FEI GE, sponsor of the bill, explained that the bill was
intended to help the conmercial agriculture industry and the
state governnent be nore effective and nore in-line with each
ot her . He said that the current Board of Agriculture and
Conservation had been set up under statute as a |oan approval
board for the Agricultural Revolving Loan Fund, but as it did
not have an advisory or regulatory role, it was therefore not
constituted as an official channel of conmunication between the
industry and the state governnent. He reported that the board
provi ded advice, but did not have any statutory power.

1: 22: 19 PM

COCHAIR FEIGE noted that, as there had been a nunber of
concerns raised about this bill previous to this hearing, a
committee substitute (CS) had been prepared after discussions
with the Board of Agriculture and Conservation, the Natural
Resources Conservation Devel opnent Board, the Al aska Associ ation

of Conservation Districts, and the State Farm Bureau. He
reported that many of these suggestions were wused in the
proposed bill and that there were several proposed anmendnents

t hat shoul d al so be consi der ed.
1: 24: 12 PM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON noved to adopt proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for HB 207, |labeled 28-LS0675\C, Martin,
1/22/ 14, as the working docunent. There being no objection, it
was so ordered.

1: 24: 30 PM

M CHAEL PASCHALL, Staff, Representative Eric Feige, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, began his PowerPoint presentation titled "HB 207."
He acknow edged that there was still nore work and di scussion on
the proposed CS. He pointed to slide 2, "Wy HB 207?" and
relayed that there had been concerns with a lack of formal
comuni cation for the policies of agriculture in Al aska between
the agriculture industry and the state governnent. He stated
that the Board of Agriculture and Conservation was limted in
its nmenbership, as any |l oan applicants were not eligible for the

board, although |oan holders were eligible. He reported that
potential loan applicants did not want to share personal and
busi ness financi al information wth friends or busi ness

conpetitors who may serve on the board, as the board reviewed

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- February 5, 2014



t hese | oan applications. He suggested that there was too much

autonony and not enough oversight for the soil and water
conservation districts, as there were not any regulations
witten pertaining to the districts. He noted that the recent

audit by the Legislative Audit Division had expressed concern
for the managenent by the Board of Agriculture and Conservation
of the Agriculture Revolving Loan Fund (ARLF), and that sone of
t hese concerns were now addressed in the proposed bill. He
mentioned the depletion of the principal in the Agriculture
Revol ving Loan Fund as al so being a point of concern.

1:27: 02 PM

MR. PASCHALL noved on to slide 3, "What HB 207 WII Do." He
suggested that the Board of Agriculture and Conservation and the
Nat ural Resources Conservation Developnent Board be conbined
into a single board that would be named the Board of
Agricultural, Conservation, and Devel oprment (BACD), which would
provide input to state agencies on agriculture, conservation,
food production, and land use, and would oversee the soil and

wat er conservation districts. It would also serve as the
managi ng group for the Alaska District, which represented the
unorgani zed soil and water areas. The proposed bill would nove

the | oan approvals by the ARLF to the Departnent of Conmerce,
Community & Econom c Devel opnent, with an appeal process back to
the board and the comm ssioner of Departnment of Natural

Resour ces. He pointed out that the intention of the proposed
bill had always been for only the |oan approval process to be
noved, not the nmanagenent of the fund. He stated that the
proposed bill would also authorize this new board to oversee the

soil and water districts.
1: 28: 16 PM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON asked why the bill proposed to only
nove the |oan approval process to the Departnent of Comrerce,
Communi ty & Economi ¢ Devel oprent.

MR. PASCHALL explained that the issue for an individual not
wanting to share financial information when submtting an
application for a loan, as well as the applicant for a |oan not
being eligible for nmenbership on the board, had necessitated the
nove of the |oan approval process to avoid any conflicts. He
directed attention to the audit report, which recommended
rel ocation of the entire fund. He offered his belief that this
was not in the best interest for agriculture as the policies of
the loan fund should be set by those in the agricultural

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- February 5, 2014



i ndustry. This proposal now allowed oversight from another
agency.

1:29: 43 PM

CO CHAIR FEI GE added that the intention of the proposed bill was
to inprove the "comunication path" and get the best advice for
state governnment available fromthe experts, as leaving the |oan
approval process with the board would exclude advice from these
ot hers. This would also allow nmenbership on the board to be
opened up as wide as possible to attract a w der spectrum of
tal ent.

1: 31: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KAWASAKI asked about the genesis of the Board of
Agriculture and Conservation and the Natural Resour ces
Conservati on Devel opnent Board.

MR. PASCHALL explained that the Board of Agriculture and
Conservation was essentially a renamng and restructuring of the
Agriculture Revolving Loan Fund board about 15-20 years
previ ously. He was unsure for the creation of the Natural
Resour ces Conservati on Devel opnment Board.

CO- CHAIR SADDLER reported that there were about 120 state
boar ds.

1:32:11 PM

MR. PASCHALL noved on to slide 4, "Current Board Conposition,"”
and explained that the conposition of the Board of Agriculture
and Conservation included four menbers from conmerci al
agriculture production, one nenber from a soil and water
conservation district, one nenber from a statewi de agricultura
pronotional organization, and one nenber wth general business
or financial experience. The Natural Resources Conservation
Devel opnent Board included five resident bona fide l|and users
from the five mjor Jland areas of the state, and the
Comm ssi oner of Departnent of Natural Resources or a designee,
the Director of Agriculture, which was a non-voting position.
These board nenbershi ps were conbined into a new board with 12

voting nenbers, slide 5, "New Board Conposition." These nenbers
included five nenbers engaged in commercial pr oducti on
agricul ture, five land wusers from the soil and water
conservation district, one nenber wth general business or
financial experience not involved in comercial production

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- February 5, 2014



agriculture, and one nenber wth experience in preparation,
storage, processing, nmarketing or other itens of food products,

and not involved in comercial production agriculture. He
pointed out that the three non-voting nmenbers would be the
comm ssioners of DNR and DEC, as well as the Chancellor of

University of Alaska Fairbanks, or a designee from the
Cooperative Extension Service or the School of Natural Resources
and Agricul tural Sciences.

1: 34: 08 PM

MR. PASCHALL directed attention to slide 6, "Current BAC
Duties,” and stated that the current duties were to admnister
and make | oans fromthe ARLF, adopt regulations to carry out the
board's function to nmanage the ARLF, enter into agreenents to
carry out the duties of the board, and recomend |and to be
classified as agricultural through the |and bank. He decl ared
that the essential purpose of the current Board of Agriculture
and Conservation was for | oan approval.

1: 34: 48 PM

MR. PASCHALL addressed slide 7, "Current NRCDB Duties,” and
stated that these duties included advice to the Comm ssioner of
DNR for the exercise of powers, duties, and functions of the
commi ssi oner . The duties also included reviewing reports
concerning the use of soil resources, conducting public hearings
and neetings to determne whether |and was being used in a
manner consistent wth sound soil and water conservation
practices, and reviewi ng conservation plans for the sale of
agricultural |and. He stated that the board reconmmended action
to provide for the effective and orderly devel opnent of
agricultural, forest, and grazing land, and reviewed appeals
regarding the sale or lease of agricultural or grazing |and, as
wel | as advised the soil and water conservation districts in the
st at e. He nmentioned that the board also served as the Board of
Supervisors for the Alaska District.

1: 35: 39 PM

CO CHAI R SADDLER asked if any of the duties of the NRCDB were
federal | y mandat ed.

MR. PASCHALL responded that he would have to review the federa
statutes; however, the concept of the soil and water districts
was required by the US Departnment of Agriculture (USDA) for the
use of federal funds for agriculture within the areas of the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- February 5, 2014



districts. He explained that the producers in those districts
were eligible for USDA funds.

CO CHAI R SADDLER shared that it was necessary to ensure that the
proposed board did not abrogate any responsibility to the
federal departnents.

MR. PASCHALL acknow edged that the duties of the proposed board
now i ncluded two new duties, slide 8 and slide 9, "BACD Duties."

In addition to advising DNR it would also advise the
Departments of Environnental Conservation and Fish & Gane
pertaining to land use and function of traditional soil and
water district responsibilities. He pointed out that the

proposed board woul d al so supervise the soil and water districts
in the state. He reported that this new board would al so review
ARLF | oan deni al appeals and wite guidelines for |oan approvals
from the ARLF. He said it would make recommendations to the
University of Alaska Cooperative Extension Service and the
School of Natural Resources and Agricultural Sciences for
prograns and activities that wuld further the pronotion,
regul ation, and protection of the agricultural and food industry
and broaden the economc basis of the state. He added that it
was necessary to have a board to nake formal recommendations to
the agencies and state governnent that worked with agriculture
and food production.

1: 38: 22 PM

CO CHAIR FEIGE comented that inclusion of the University of
Al aska Cooperative Extension Service in the proposed bil

i nproved the communication and information flow to the farners
and the industry.

MR, PASCHALL pointed out that the proposed board would advise
the Conmi ssioners of DNR, DEC, and ADF&G on the pronotion,
regul ati on, and protection of the agricultural and food industry
to broaden the economic base of the state and to protect the
consuners, slide 10, "BACD Duties." He directed attention to
the list of policy itenms, which included agriculture, |and use,
resource conservation, food safety and security, pesticides and
her bi ci des, and noxi ous and i nvasive pl ants.

1: 39: 30 PM
MR PASCHALL exani ned slide 11, "Fiscal Notes," which reflected

that the fiscal note was included in nultiple funding sources.
He directed attention to the fiscal notes from DEC, Departnent

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- February 5, 2014



of Commerce, Community & Econom ¢ Devel opnent (DCCED), and DNR
and summarized the net effect of all of these fiscal notes for
FY 2016. He shared that DEC and DCCED stated that there would
not be any net cost from the proposed board. He expl ai ned that
the current board had an allocation from the general fund of
$116,500 through DNR, and that the estimate of cost would be
$173,800 in FY 16. O this cost difference, $57,300, $17, 300
was the estimate for witing new regulations and the remaining
$40,000 would be for |loan approval and services provided. He
offered his belief that this cost would be lowered in the
proposed CS, Version C

1: 42: 15 PM

MR. PASCHALL sumrarized slide 12, "Advantages," and said that
the changes for the new Board of Agriculture, Conservation, and
Devel opnent would provide an efficient and formal avenue for
conmuni cati on bet ween farnmers, | and users, and t he
adm ni strati on. It would allow the farners and |and users nore
input into adm nistration policy, and would allow | oan approval s
fromthe ARLF to be handled faster and nore efficiently. There
woul d be fewer neetings to allow inproved efficiency within the
adm nistration and this would realize a nodest cost savings. He
noted that fewer funds would be renoved from the ARLF for
adm ni strative purposes, thereby retaining nore of the ARLF's
capi tal

COCHAIR FEIGE pointed out that HB 207 would also inprove
custoner service and decrease the delays for the handling of the
| oans.

1: 44: 42 PM

CO CHAI R SADDLER, addressing the proposed duties of the conbined
board, asked if there were any limtations to what the board
coul d advi se.

MR. PASCHALL expressed his belief that the limtations fell into
the existing definitions in statute, except in the cases where
new definitions had been witten. He noted that this was an
advisory role, so these were suggestions for what benefited the
agricultural and food industry, and its pronotion, regulation,
and protection. Anything beyond this scope would be beyond the
pur pose of the board.

1:46: 08 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- February 5, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if a sectional analysis of the
proposed bill would be present ed.

MR. PASCHALL, in response, paraphrased from the sectional
anal ysis which had been prepared by the Division of Legal and
Research Services, dated January 27, 2014. [Included in nenbers’
packet s] . He stated that Section 1 essentially established the
new board, elimnated the existing board, and defined the board
menber shi p. He relayed that Section 2 dealt with a specific
[imtation in statute, which stated that nenbers of the board
could not obtain |[oans, and this had been changed to
specifically allow them to process and obtain |oans. He said
that Section 3 required that the board neet four times annually,
with one neeting at the capital while the other three neetings
were not to be held in the sane |ocation. He pointed out that
Section 4 was a new section which addressed the powers and the
duties of the board, and he offered his belief that he had

al ready presented these details. He relayed that this included
new powers as well as the existing powers of the conbined
boar ds. Moving on to Section 5, he reported that the Director

of the Division of Agriculture would now be responsible for the
overal | managenent and policy of the Agricultural Revolving Loan
Fund (ARLF). He said that Section 6 now required five voting
menbers of the board to constitute a quorum while Section 7
all owed the board to adopt regulations to carry out its duties,
including the establishnent of fees. Section 8 nmade a
conform ng amendnent for a reference to the new board. Section
9 defined "agriculture" for purposes of this chapter, and
determined that the wuse of "board® in this new chapter
referenced the new board. He explained that Section 10 added a
new section pertaining to loans from the ARLF, requiring the
Department of Commerce, Conmunity & Economic Developnent to
approve loans from the fund. As it also spelled out the
exi sting types of loans, he clarified that nost of this |anguage
for the types of |oans was already in existing statute.

1:49: 40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KAWASAKI directed attention to Section 7 and what
was envi sioned for the system of fees.

MR. PASCHALL, in response, said that ARLF required an
application fee to apply for a loan, as did nost of the state
| oan prograns managed by DCCED. He said that the |anguage was
part of the existing statute, although it had been noved to a
different portion of the statute.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- February 5, 2014



1:50: 45 PM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON directed attention to page 5, line 9,
of the proposed CS, and asked if this had been included in the
earlier version.

MR. PASCHALL said that the |anguage was already in statute, and
it allowed the board to enter into contracts to carry out its
pur pose. He gave an exanple for the buying or selling of | oans
in the fund.

1:52: 07 PM

MR. PASCHALL continued with Section 10, explaining that this
section set out the types of |oans for approval. He descri bed
that Section 11 renoved the reference to the fixed rate of
interest on a farm devel opnent, chattel, or irrigation |oan.
Section 12 <changed the reference from the board to the
Department of Commerce, Community & Economi c Devel opnent, and
Section 13 <changed the reference from the board to the
Departnment of Natural Resources. Section 14 renoved the
reference to fixed rate interest on the farm processing | oans,
and Section 15 deleted |anguage pertaining to the paraneters of
interest rates on | oans.

1:53:11 PM

MR. PASCHALL expl ained that Section 16 allowed the Departnent of
Commerce, Community & Econonmic Developnent to restructure
certain loans wunder the guidelines approved by the board,
opining that only one outstanding loan still qualified, and that
Section 17 required that funds from assignments of proceeds that
wer e overpaynents of | oans were to be deposited into the ARLF.

CO CHAI R SADDLER asked if those proceeds were interest.

MR. PASCHALL explained that the existing |anguage said that a
| oan paynent, both principal and interest, would be deposited
into the ARLF. He noted that federal paynents needed to be
assigned to the loan fund, and paid into the ARLF, instead of
into the general fund.

CO CHAIR SADDLER asked if paynments of principal and interest
currently went to the general fund or the ARLF.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- February 5, 2014



MR. PASCHALL replied that they were currently deposited into the
Agricul tural Revol ving Loan Fund (ARLF), and that there were not
any structural changes proposed.

CO- CHAI R SADDLER asked for a reason to this section

MR. PASCHALL explained that nobst of the |anguage was existing
statute anended to refer to DNR instead of +the Board of
Agriculture to clarify that there were not any future questions
for interpretation.

1:55: 20 PM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON asked if there was anything in the
proposed bill that directed funding away fromthe general fund.

MR. PASCHALL offered his belief that there was not any intention
to change funding, other than to realize that the prinmary

function of the Board was to adm nister the ARLF. He noted
that, as the proposed board was no |onger review ng |oans, that
funding was not necessary. He pointed out that fees to
adm nister the Iloans, as well as service fees, were all

deposited into the fund.

1:56: 46 PM

MR. PASCHALL directed attention to Section 18, noting that this
section had been noved from its original [|ocation, which
requi red that excess proceeds collected would be refunded to the
| oan holder. He explained that Section 19 was a reference from
the board to DCCED, and that Section 20 anended the definition
of "nonfarm use." Section 21 allowed the Ilegislature to

appropriate noney from the fund for the cost of admnistering
the fund, which was the current |anguage, and Section 22
required the board to admnister the ARLF, which was also
exi sting language, only slightly adjusted to expedite energency
| oans t hrough DCCED.

1:58:15 PM

CO CHAIR SADDLER asked if this energency authority existed in
the current structure.

MR. PASCHALL explained that, wunder the current process, the

application paperwork nust be submtted 30 days prior to the
board neeting, although there was a provision to allow three

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- February 5, 2014



menbers of the board to review the application if it was
necessary nore quickly.

1:58: 58 PM

MR. PASCHALL directed attention to Section 23, noting that it
added a new sub-section which pertained to the interest rates of
the loan, allowng the board to set the rate |ower under certain
predefined policy circunstances. He said that Section 24
spelled out the definitions of ™"agricultural,” "board,"” and
"departnment” in this section. He pointed out that Sections 25 -
34 had conformng |anguage dealing wth novenent of the
functions of the current board to the proposed board.

MR. PASCHALL explained that Section 35 would change the
definition of "board" to the Board of Agriculture, Conservation
and Devel opnent, Section 36 repealed statutes, and Section 37
provided a transition from the two existing boards to the
proposed board.

MR. PASCHALL stated that Section 38 allowed the agency to adopt
regul ations prior to the change in boards actually going into
effect, while Section 39 set out the effective dates for
Sections 37 and 38. Section 40 provided an effective date,
January 31, 2015, for the proposed bill.

2:00: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON expressed his concern that, as a quorum
of only five was necessary, a small segnent of the board could
gat her and nmake all the deci sions.

MR. PASCHALL shared that there had been discussions for the
conposition, nunbers, and quorum of the proposed board, and he
offered his belief that this problem could be addressed.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON suggested that a possible solution would
be to all ow tel ephonic attendance.

MR. PASCHALL declared that this had been included in one of the
anmendnents currently being draft ed.

2:02:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked how the i nt erest rate was
est abl i shed.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- February 5, 2014



MR. PASCHALL explained that it was based upon a rate simlar to
that charged by private institutions providing agricultural
loans in Alaska, although he admtted there were not many
private institutions providing these | oans. He noted that the
rate was usually slightly lower than the rate offered by the
Al aska Rural Rehabilitation Corporation and the Farm Services
Agency. He directed attention to the audit, which |isted these
| oan rates.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON reflected on simlar |egislation which
had established guidelines.

CO- CHAIR FEIGE noted that this issue had been raised by another
commttee nenber, and that an anendnent was prepared to provide
a mnimuminterest rate to cover the adm nistrative costs.

2:04: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON nused that it was inportant for boards to
have the proper nmakeup in order to prevent one segnment from
controlling the board. He declared his dislike and concern for
an even nunber of board nenbers and asked it to be addressed.

2:05:44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON inquired why one of the four required
nmeetings each year must be in Juneau, as nost farmng takes
place in the Railbelt.

MR. PASCHALL explained that it was an inportant consideration
for the board to be representative across the state so that
statewide agriculture and conservation expertise could be
provided, and that this was an existing requirement for the
Nat ural Resource Conservation and Devel opnent Board. He opi ned
that it was common for boards to have at |[|east one annual
neeting in the state capital, as the Legislature and |oan
adm nistrators were |ocated there. He said that different
venues better allowed individuals the opportunity to neet wth
t he board face to face.

2:07:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER offered to sinplify a conplicated concern
for the macro view of the proposed bill. He noted that there
were "a nunber of pieces at play here,” which included the ARLF,
the Natural Resource Conservation and Devel opnent Board, and the
Board of Agriculture and Conservation. He stated that the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- February 5, 2014



duties under the fornmer soil and water conservation board were
now proposed to be included in the proposed Board of Agriculture
and Conservati on. He offered his belief that the Board of Soil
and Wat er Conservation was established in 1949.

CO CHAIR FEIGE confirnmed that it had been established in 1949,
in conjunction with the soil and water conservation districts,
as a result of the Dust Bow .

CO-CHAI R SADDLER asked for clarification that the reference was
for the Al aska Soil and Water Conservation District.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER replied that he was referencing Title 41,
Chapter 10, regarding soil and water conservati on.

CO- CHAIR SADDLER replied that Representative Hawker had referred
to the Board of Soil and Water Conservation.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER expl ai ned that this board was established
under AS 41.10.

CO CHAI R SADDLER asked for clarification to the proper nane of
t he board.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER replied that the board which had been

est abl i shed was t he Nat ur al Resource Conservati on and
Devel opnent Board (NRCDB), and that it was this board which
woul d be elimnated under the proposed bill. He noted that the

duties of the board were very broad, and were directed at the
managenent and conservation of state soil and water resources.
He pointed out that this board, with its broad responsibilities
for public resources, was being elimnated and nmerged into the
Board of Agriculture and Conservation, a nore narrowmy focused
boar d. He pointed out that the current Board of Agriculture
existed in Title 3, under agriculture, animals, and food. He
stated that the duties of this broadly nmanaged, statew de, soil
and water conservation board were being nmerged into a board
specifically titled under agriculture, animals, and food. He
pointed out that the Agricultural Revolving Loan Fund, also
under Title 3, was established in 1953 as the core for the
benefit and devel opnent of agriculture, aninmals, and food in the
st ate. He stated that this narrow focus did not include the
broader focus for nmanagenment of soil and water resources.

2:13: 54 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- February 5, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER reported that, subsequent to all of this,
with the ARLF and the soil and water conservation board both
functioning, the Board of Agriculture had been created in 2000,
with only one real function as listed in Title 3, the nmanagenent
and daily operations of the ARLF. He suggested that there was a
long history of concern for the effective managenent by the
Board of Agriculture, referencing a "scathing audit about
m smanagenent within the ARLF, the Board of Agriculture" and he
questioned whet her this performance had inproved. He
acknowl edged the current audit which had indicated existing
seri ous concerns.

2:16: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER questioned why all of the statew de
responsibilities for soil and water conservation were being
nmoved into a nore recently created, "arguably dysfunctional

board" titled under "agriculture, animals, and food" which he
characterized as having a very narrow focus for one industria
segnent, pronoting agriculture, within the state. He offered
his belief "that we're doin' somethin' wong here.” He declared
that the board proposed for elimnation had a nuch broader
charge for responsibility of statewi de water and soi
conservation issues under Title 41. He stressed that this
regul atory board responsible for protecting water and soi
conservation was being noved into an advocacy board responsible
for econom c devel opnent in a small sector of the state econony.
He questioned whether proposed HB 207 "gets us to where we want
to be." He asked for clarification whether his interpretation
was correct.

2:19: 07 PM

MR. PASCHALL expressed his agreenment with nost of what had been
stated, although he opined that the NRCDB was only advisory, and
not regulatory. He pointed out that the repeal, revision, and
addition of statute were all contained in AS 03, AS 38, AS 39,
and AS 41. He deferred to Legislative Legal Services for the
reason to placenent of the proposed board in AS 03.

CO CHAI R SADDLER suggested the need for an explanation to the
NRCDB and its conposition, activities, issues, and authorities.

2:20: 34 PM

EDMUND FOGELS, Deputy Comm ssioner, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Department of Natural Resources (DNR), explained that one of his

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 15- February 5, 2014



duties was to oversee the Executive Director for the Natural
Resource Conservation and Devel opnent Board (NRCDB) and interact
with the board. He noted that the board offered advice to the
commi ssioner and that it net four times annually. He stated
that its advice was "trenendously valuable"” to both DNR and the
soil and water conservation districts. He described the board
as the link between managenent of the districts, and that DNR
was pursuing ways to nmake the board even nore effective.

2:22:19 PM

MR. FOGELS, in response to Co-Chair Saddler, explained that the
work of the board covered a broad spectrum which included
resource conversation and agriculture. He said that he had
become a huge fan of the soil and water conservation districts,
describing them as a quasi-governnental agency that had a w de
vari ety of support neans.

2:23: 11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER declared that the soil and water
conservation districts were also created in 1949 under AS
41.10.130, and that the duties of the board were enunerated
under AS 41.10.100 to support those districts as they were far
beyond agricultural responsibilities.

2:24:13 PM
CO CHAI R SADDLER asked M. Fogels if there would be a dimnution
of the conbined boards' ability to fulfill the functions of the

soil and water conservation districts.

MR. FOGELS offered that the DNR interpretation of the proposed

bill was that all the necessary duties would remain in order to
do the jobs. He stated that effectiveness would be determnm ned
by work | oad. He stated that, based on his attendance at the
neetings, "this was one of the hardest working boards that we
have in the state, and ny hat's off to those board nenbers.” He
noted that the duties of the board would change wth the
proposed bill, as it would also be offering advice to DNR on

agricultural issues, which was a current duty of the NRCDB
2:25: 53 PM
REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON referred to the letter from the

Fai rbanks Soil & Water Conservation District, dated January 31,
2014 [Included in nmenbers' packets], which declared that it did

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -16- February 5, 2014



not support proposed HB 207 and expressed concern that this
"would dilute the desires of those we serve and radically change
the mssion and the operation of soil and water districts across
the state." She asked whether there had been any discussion
with this group

COCHAIR FEIGE replied that he had talked with people on the
NRCDB, and the Al aska Association of Conservation Districts,
whi ch he described as the unbrella organi zation for the soil and
wat er conservation districts. He declared that there was not
intent to dimnish the information and advice currently provided
by the NRCDB to the state, hence the retention for the proposed
board of all the current responsibilities. He said that sonme of
the | anguage in the proposed bill was designed specifically to
give nore power to the board, including the witing of
regul ations or supervising the districts. He reported that the
intent was for the board nenbers to be the "resident experts, to
know far nore and have a nore diverse opinion about the soil and
wat er conservation issues or the agricultural issues across the

state." He declared his intent to place as nuch influence and
authority as possible with the board as it wuld give the
industries a nuch greater say in governnental policies. He
expressed his agreenment that, although this was a change from
the current board, it did not dimnish the influence of the
exi sting board structures, but instead offered a nuch greater
voice for input by the industry. He pointed out that the
agricultural industry in Alaska was in a gradual, steady

decline, and that a greater voice may be able to change that and
boost | ocal econom es.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked whether there would be elections
for the board nenbership, and whether there had been personality
probl ens anong the board nenbers.

COCHAIR FEIGE replied that the new board appoi ntnents would be
up to the governor, and he expressed his desire that the current
board nenbers continue their service. He declared that the
current BAC had done a |lot of good work, and had done a lot to
i nprove the managenent of the ARLF, as well as the requirenents
for | oans. He opined that it was still necessary for the board
to have nore regulatory authority, with a nore formal voice for
advice to DNR, DEC, and ADF&G

2:31:49 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- February 5, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE KAWASAKI asked about the history of the NRCDB,
and he shared his concern wth those concerns stated by
Represent ati ve Hawker

MR. FOGELS, in response to Representative Kawasaki, related the
hi story of the board, as told to him by the executive director

of NRCDB. He said that soil and water conservation districts
had been created during the Dust Bow to "get their hands dirty
and fix the resources in the soil." He offered his

understanding that the territorial |egislature in Al aska created
the Al aska Conservation Board in 1947, which |ater norphed into
the NRCDB. He allowed that the conservation districts were also
created during that period to respond to |ocal natural resource
i ssues.

REPRESENTATI VE = KAWASAKI asked if, as a purpose of the
conservation district was to be agile, the proposed bill make
this nmore difficult.

MR. FOCELS offered his belief that he could make it work as |ong

as he had the proper resources and a good board. He did not
expect there to be nuch change. He stated that the issues with
the soil and water <conservation districts were not wth
managenent, but with a lack of avail able resources. He shared

that each district was only as good as the energy of the people
within that district.

2:35: 23 PM

COCHAIR FEIGE directed attention to Version C, page 5, line 4,
and noted that "to advise and regulate" had generated a |ot of
i nterest. He clarified that the inclusion of "regulate" within
the powers of the board ensured that the people in the industry
had a say for the actions in the soil and water conservation
districts, as opposed to leaving it unclear and open to

interpretation. He declared that it was not his intention to
"upset the applecart in the way soil and water conservation
districts work." He allowed that "regulate" offered a wde

range of response, but it placed the destiny of those districts
"in the hands of people fromthe industry and fromthe districts
across the state, not in sone current or future state agencies."”

2:37: 09 PM
REPRESENTATI VE TARR expressed simlar concerns for the board

functions, and she related her recent experience with a soil and
wat er conservation district. She asked about the current

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- February 5, 2014



primary function for the approval of |oans by the BAC, and for
its proposed advisory role. She asked if there would be any
conflicts between the proposed board and DNR

MR. FOGELS replied that DNR craved nore input on agricultura
policy and issues from the current board, noting that currently
there were a lot of big agriculture issues in the state. He
of fered exanples for the issues of agricultural |and disposal
and the difficulty for obtaining a loan to build a dwelling on
agricultural |and.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked if the language in this proposed bil
woul d acconplish that, or would it be nore appropriate to sinply
make changes to the current BAC, and increase its ability to
bring input to DNR

MR FOGELS replied that the proposed bill offered the
opportunity for input on agricultural policy.

2:40: 43 PM

KRISTIN CURTIS, Legislative Auditor, Dvision of Legislative
Audit, Al aska State Legislature, reported that the division had
conpleted an audit on the Agricultural Revolving Loan Fund
(ARLF), dated June 24, 2013. She recounted that the purpose of
the audit was to exam ne the performance and adm nistration of
the fund, and to conpare its admnistration to that of other
| oan prograns and industry best practices. She stated that the
goal of the evaluation was to identify ways to inprove the
fund's performance and efficiencies, wth an enphasis for
whet her the fund should be admnistered through a different
state agency. She pointed out that a copy of the audit was
included in the nenbers' packets. She declared that the audit
noted many instances of admnistrative deficiencies with many
opportunities for increased efficiency. Based on these
findings, the division concluded that noving the adm nistration
and |oan decisions of ARLF to the DCCED, Division of Economc
Devel opnent, may inprove the efficiency and effectiveness of the
| oan program and help ensure the future solvency of the fund.
She pointed to the detailed conclusions of the audit, page 13,
which stated that the fiscal condition of ARLF was a result of
the agricultural policy decisions nmade over the past 30 years by
the executive and legislative branches of the Al aska state
gover nnent .

M5. CURTIS said that nmany of the |l|ending and nanagenent
decisions were made in support of the agricultural industry,

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- February 5, 2014



rather than for maintenance of the fiscal health of the fund
Since inception, the equity of the fund had declined by 69
percent. She pointed to a positive note, as the audit concl uded
that the default rates were reasonable at the program |evel,
between 1 and 5 percent over the past five years, as |isted on
page 27 of the report. She reported that the audit identified
nunerous adm nistrative deficiencies, which, if not corrected,
could possibly contribute to future loan | osses, and were |isted

at the bottom of page 14. She offered sonme exanples of the
defi ci enci es, which included ineffective and inefficient
processes for |oan evaluation and approval, property nmanagenent,
and | oan nmanagenent. She listed sone troubl esone deficiencies
which included additional |oans given to borrowers who had
experienced substantial financial losses and had difficulty
neeting prior loan obligations, as well as new loans to

borrowers w thout prudent considerations of prior defaults. She
shared that the audit had also found that its regulations did
not pronote consistent fiscally responsible decisions, and these
regul ations would be inproved by incorporating industry best
practices.

M5. CURTIS shared that ARLF was conpared to other |oan prograns,
and that other boards simlar to the Board of Agriculture and
Conservation were not comonly used for |ending decisions. She
stated that it was nore common for |ending decisions to be made
by professional lending staff or by commttees wth |ending
expertise. She noted that there were inefficiencies in the ARLF
adm ni stration, which were discussed on page 17. She said that
ARLF administrators did not use an automated |oan system for
| oan processing, reporting, or nonitoring, and had not obtained
USDA farm service agency |oan guarantees for ARLF loans to
mtigate any potential |oan |osses, even though the program was
el i gi bl e.

2:44: 35 PM
M5. CURTIS directed attention to page 23, which detailed a

recommendation to nove the Agricultural Revolving Loan Fund to
the DCCED s Division of Econom c Devel opnent, as this division

currently admnistered 13 state run | oan prograns. She offered
her belief that the ARLF would benefit from this econony of
scale, and the automated |oan system She opined that the

program woul d benefit from | oan expertise and standardization

She offered two recommendations to the ARLF adm nistrators.
Referring to page 24 of the audit, she recommended that ARLF
adm nistrators anend the regulations to pronote industry best
practices, as the current regulations did not include criteria

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- February 5, 2014



for approving loans and did not provide sufficient guidelines
for the evaluation of «collateral. She also recomended that
ARLF adm ni strators pursue disposal of business properties and
revise the property leasing rates to provide a return on ARLF
assets. She reported that ARLF currently owned two active
busi ness properties, a slaughtering facility and the Al aska Farm
Co- oper ati ve. She pointed out that the operation of businesses
was not within the statutory authority granted to ARLF, as its
statutory objective was to pronote the nore rapid devel opnent of
agriculture as an industry by neans of long term |ow interest

| oans. She reported that Alaska statute stated that property
acquired by ARLF through foreclosure, default, or other neans
shoul d be disposed of to nmaximze the state's return. | nst ead

of pursuing disposal of the aforenentioned slaughtering facility
and co-operative, policy decisions continue to be mde to

operate these Dbusinesses. She said that the slaughtering
facility continued to incur annual |osses and that the co-
operative did not offer any financial return, with a curulative
effect for a reduction to the ARLF assets. She re-stated the

recomendation for disposal of both these business properties,
with a revision of leasing rates, to provide an adequate return
on these ARLF assets.

2:46: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE =~ KAWASAKI refl ected on t he af orenent i oned
recommendati ons and opined that the proposed policy decision to
conbine the two boards was separate from a decision regarding
the admi nistration of the ARLF. He asked whether a nove of the
ARLF administration to DCCED as well as inplenentation of the
suggested recommendati ons for regul ation anendnents and di sposal
of the business properties would suffice for a cleaner audit of
ARLF in the future.

M5. CURTIS, in response, asked to clarify the adm nistration of
the ARLF fund.

REPRESENTATI VE KAWASAKI expl ai ned t hat t he ARLF fund
adm ni strati on woul d be through DCCED

M5. CURTIS reported the audit had concluded that, although the
BAC board worked hard, it operated under conpeting priorities
for supporting the agricultural industry and nmintaining the
health of the Agricultural Revolving Loan Fund, a tension that
had existed for many, many years. She noted that prior audits
had also been critical of admnistration to the fund. She
pointed out that, as there had also been a recommendation for

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- February 5, 2014



i mprovenent of the regulations, nore guidance for regulation to
the approval process and industry best practice would address
these criticisns. She stated that disposal of the business
properties would address this practice, as it was not authorized
in statute.

2:49:50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked if any attenpt had been made to
sell the aforenentioned sl aughter conpany.

M5. CURTIS offered her understanding that there had been
attenpts to dispose of the property, the last tine in 2006,
al though this had included a requirenent for a buyer to continue
operation and accept all aninals. She relayed that there had
not been any responsive bidders at that tine.

2:50:28 PM

M5. CURTIS, in response to Representative O son, reported that
the earliest audit for ARLF was from 1984, and that these audits
over the past 30 years had continued to reveal many of the sane
findi ngs. She referenced footnote 20 on the first
recommendation, which identified some of the old findings that
had been reiterated.

2:51: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON asked if five years would be an adequate
anount of time to "clean this up under the proposed conbination
of responsibilities.”

M5. CURTIS replied that five years would be nore than sufficient
to address all three recommendations and to see an i nprovenent.

2:51:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON suggested that a reasonable sunset clause
be added to the proposed bill.

M5. CURTI S acknow edged that there had not been a lack of audits
over the years, though it was debatable whether there had been
any inprovenents as a result of those audits. She expressed
agreenent that five vyears wuld be sufficient, if the
i nprovenents were actually inpl enented.

2:52: 13 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -22- February 5, 2014



CO CHAIR SADDLER asked if Representative O son reconmended a
five year sunset clause on the conbi ned board.

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON expressed his agreenent, although he was
not offering a sunset clause at this tine.

2:52: 33 PM

CO CHAIR FEIGE, reflecting that the capital in the ARLF had been
steadily depleting since its inception, asked whether the
problems were a result of legislative or executive branch
action, or m smanagenent by the Board of Agri cul tural
Conservati on

M5. CURTIS directed attention to page 13 of the audit report

which outlined exactly how the noney had been depleted. She
referenced the $29 mllion in defaulted |oans, and she offered
her belief that this result was a conmbination of the |oan
approval system the admnistration, and the econony. She
pointed to the $13 mllion for funding operations in the

Division of Agriculture, and remarked that this was a policy
decision for use of the funds which was not reflective of the
adm ni strati on. She reported that $10 million was appropriated
back to the general fund, and that $3.5 mllion had been used to
purchase and run the aforenmentioned slaughtering facility.

2:53:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked for clarification whether the
sl aughter facility had been repossessed or purchased.

M5. CURTIS explained that the facility was built in the md-
1980s with a general fund loan of $2 mllion, which was
subsequent|ly absorbed by the ARLF as a second trust deed. \When
the facility "quickly went under,” the ARLF bought the property
and paid off the first creditor. She stated that the property
had not been received by a | oan default.

2:54:31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KAWASAKI reflected on the discussion for the
conmbination of the two boards and the transfer for the
adm nistration of the ARLF and asked if it was conceivabl e that
the proposed board wuld also introduce "simlarly poor
regul ations dealing with the ARLF, or simlarly bad disposal of
busi ness property regul ations.”

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -23- February 5, 2014



M5. CURTIS replied that she had no corment for what coul d happen
as auditors reviewed history and made recommendations for
approval .

REPRESENTATI VE KAWASAKI asked if this recommendation would
include a nerger of the two boards for future admnistrative
deci si ons.

M5. CURTIS replied that her division had not considered the
nmerger of the two boards and did not have an opinion for this
deci sion. She acknow edged the difficulty for the audit report,
as there were nmany possible answers for fixing the problens.
She reported that these deficiencies had resulted in a
conclusion to nove the fund admnistration, although other
options had been fiercely debated.

2:56:28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked for clarification that, although
the two boards were being nmerged, the lending and the financia
aspects of the ARLF were being noved to Departnent of Conmerce,
Community & Economi ¢ Devel oprent.

CO- CHAIR FEI GE expl ained that the fund would continue to operate
essentially as it did currently. The applications would be
prepared and processed through the Division of Agriculture, and
woul d be directed to an individual at DCCED for final approval
The proposed new board would set the guidelines for
qualifications for this individual as well as any requirenents
to be placed on the application process, but the final approva
woul d be nade outside the board. He noted that an appeal would
be returned to the board for a decision.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON offered his belief that the proposed
changes included "having the sane people do the same work that
have had a dismal report and the check witten by a different
person.” He suggested that there were not any changes, other
than who would wite the check, although there had been bad
reports for the preceding 30 years.

CO CHAIR FEIGE offered his belief that this policy call had been
made in the best interest for agriculture.

2:58: 34 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 24- February 5, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE TARR offered her understanding that the initia
approval was with [DCCED] and that any appeal would be addressed
by the proposed board. She asked if, during the audit of other
funds, there was an acceptable standard default rate to indicate
sound managenent .

M5. CURTIS replied that her division did not review default

rates unless it was part of a special audit. 1In this case, ARLF
had been conpared to simlar loan prograns for a basis of what
was reasonabl e. She noted that, as the econony had been

vol atile over the past five years, other conparable prograns had
simlar default rates.

2:59:48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON asked if any of the current board nenbers
had | oans in default or had "any | oans witten off."

M5. CURTIS replied that she did not know as the default review
was in summary formand not in detail. She expressed reluctance
for further research as this information would not be included
in the report to Legislative Budget and Audit Comm ttee.

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON relayed that he was not concerned wth
specific nanes, only for whether there were any board nenbers,
and for the anpbunts in default.

M5. CURTIS agreed to research this, and then add it in nenp form
to the Legislative Budget and Audit Committee report.

3:00:42 PM

MR. FOGELS said DNR had about 40 percent of one position
currently funded in the NRCDB budget. The total budget for
NRCDB was now being transferred to the Division of Agriculture
and al though, in response to Co-Chair Saddler, there was not a
guarantee for any specific individual, it was hoped that the
current person, who was highly regarded, would renain.

CO CHAI R SADDLER hel d over HB 207

3:01:51 PM

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Conmmttee nmeeting was adjourned at 3:02 p. m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -25- February 5, 2014



